
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Dr Helen Paterson, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Karon Hadfield 
Email: 
Democraticservices@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 0345 600 6400 
Date: 15 April 2024 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CABINET to be held in COUNCIL 
CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL on TUESDAY, 23 APRIL 2024 at 10.00 AM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
 
Dr Helen Paterson 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Cabinet members as follows:- 

V Jones, G Renner-Thompson, J Riddle, G Sanderson (Chair), J Watson, R Wearmouth 
(Vice-Chair), C Horncastle, W Pattison, W Ploszaj and G Stewart 

 



 
Cabinet, 23 April 2024 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 
2.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;  
  
Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set out in 
Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in room. Where 
members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive function and is 
being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the 
Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter.  
  
Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 
Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members 
of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must 
not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain 
the room.  
  
Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is not 
DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare 
the interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of the 
public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the member must not take 
part in discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room.  
  
Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close 
associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests column 
in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at paragraph 9 
of Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in the meeting.  
  
Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 
Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring Officer 
and arrange for somebody else to deal with it. 
 

 

 
3.   REPORT OF THE LEADER 

 
Northumberland Energy Park Phase 3 site at East Sleekburn – 
Delegated Arrangements for Sale (Part 1) 
  
To seek Cabinet approval to allow for the purchase of Northumberland 
Energy Park Phase 3 (NEP3) and provide for a significant private sector 

(Pages 1 
- 10) 



 
Cabinet, 23 April 2024 

investment into this key strategic employment site, creating jobs and 
infrastructure development, as well as the creation of up to £110m Growth 
and Investment Endowment Fund as a result of the agreement. 
  

4.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 

 
PART II 

 
It is expected that matters included in this part of the Agenda will be dealt with in private.  

Reports referred to are enclosed for members and officers only, coloured pink and marked 
"Not for Publication". 

  
5.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
The Committee is invited to consider passing the following resolution: 
  
(a)    That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item on the Agenda as it involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
1972 Act, and  

  
(b)    That the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 

public interest in disclosure for the following reasons:- 
  

Agenda Item Paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A 
6 Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the 

financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding that 
information). 

AND The public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the interest in 
disclosure because disclosure could 
adversely affect the business reputation or 
confidence in the person/organisation and 
could adversely affect commercial 
negotiation. 

  
 

 

 
6.   REPORT OF THE LEADER  

3 
Northumberland Energy Park Phase 3 site at East Sleekburn – 
Delegated Arrangements for Sale- PART 2 
  
To seek Cabinet approval to allow for the purchase of Northumberland 
Energy Park Phase 3 (NEP3) and provide for a significant private sector 
investment into this key strategic employment site, creating jobs and 
infrastructure development, as well as the creation of up to £110m Growth 
and Investment Endowment Fund as a result of the agreement. 

(Pages 
11 - 26) 



 
Cabinet, 23 April 2024 

 



 

Cabinet, Tuesday, 23 April 2024 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Cabinet, Tuesday, 23 April 2024 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 



 
Cabinet, 23 April 2024 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 

ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Cabinet, Tuesday, 23 April 2024 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Cabinet, 23 April 2024 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

- 1 - 

 
CABINET 

23 April 2024 

Northumberland Energy Park Phase 3 site at East Sleekburn – 
Delegated Arrangements for Sale (Part 1) 

Report of Councillor(s) : Councillor Glen Sanderson, Council Leader 

 
Responsible Officer(s):  Simon Neilson, Executive Director – Place and Regeneration 

1. Link to Key Priorities of the Corporate Plan   

• Driving Economic Growth – securing development on Northumberland Energy 
Park Phase 3 (NEP3) will support the Council in delivering its corporate priority of 
driving economic growth.  As a recognised strategic employment site, NEP3 offers 
the opportunity to create significant economic and jobs growth.   

• Tackling Inequalities – Supporting job creation is a key route to supporting greater 
prosperity and wellbeing for individuals; wrap around employability and skills 
programmes and transport investments ensure jobs that will be created on NEP3 
will benefit local residents and contribute to tackling inequalities 

• Achieving Value for Money –  securing investment on NEP3 allows the County 
Council to realise opportunities for economic growth in the county, providing jobs 
and growth for local residents as well as providing increased Business Rate 
income, spend in the wider economy and wider economic and social outcomes for 
residents. 

2. Purpose of report 

To seek Cabinet approval to allow for the purchase of Northumberland Energy Park 
Phase 3 (NEP3) and provide for a significant private sector investment into this key 
strategic employment site, creating jobs and infrastructure development, as well as 
the creation of up to £110m Growth and Investment Endowment Fund as a result of 
the agreement.  

3. Recommendations 

3.1 Cabinet is requested to: 

3.2 Note the scale and significance of the intended investment and associated 
infrastructure developments and opportunities set out in the report and agree that 
this represents a project of national importance, as well as the significant benefits it 
will bring to the County and north east; 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

- 2 - 

3.3 Enter into a deed of release which releases unconditionally NCC's ‘buyback’ option 
agreement dated 9 April 2021, and as varied by a deed of variation dated 11 April 
2022, made between the County Council and Power By BV Properties Limited; 

3.4 Enter into a new ‘buyback’ agreement with an entity owned by funds managed by 
affiliates of Blackstone Inc. (such entity, Blackstone), subject to the Heads of Terms 
and undertaking satisfactory Due Diligence, more particularly set out in part 6 of the 
confidential papers; 

3.5 Agree the establishment of up to £110m Growth and Investment Endowment Fund, 
as a ring-fenced fund to maximise the opportunities across the County to deliver 
jobs growth and investment in support of the Council’s Economic Strategy, the 
scope of which is set out in paragraph 6.13, and for which further details will be 
brought to Cabinet for consideration in due course; 

3.6 To note the Council’s intention to work closely and collaboratively with Blackstone 
QTS and National Grid and / or the appointed Power Provider to enable the 
development and provide additional power provision for other potential users that 
NCC seeks to promote, including the possibility of a new National Grid substation on 
NCC land.  

3.7 To support the exploration of opportunities for the identification of additional sites 
through a land assembly strategy, and to bring forward sites for economic 
development and employment growth focussed on locations well related and 
accessible to the Northumberland Line, and other existing strategic transport 
infrastructure, including the Port of Blyth.   

4. Forward plan date and reason for urgency if applicable 

The item was entered into the Forward Plan on 26 March 2024 

5. Background 

5.1 In March and April 2021, Northumberland County Council (NCC) considered and 
agreed the purchase of the former coal stacking yard of Blyth power station, north of 
Blyth in Cambois, known as the Northumberland Energy Park Phase 3 (NEP3), from 
its then owners RWE for £4.000 million. At the same time the Council agreed to the 
back-to-back onward sale of the site to Britishvolt, trading as Power by Britishvolt 
Ltd (BV), for £4.000 million. 

5.2 The sale to BV contained an Option in favour of the County Council providing a 
‘buy-back’ for the same sale price (£4.000m) in the event that certain milestones on 
the development were not achieved: essentially requiring significant development of 
the site for a gigafactory plus conditions relating to specific funding from HM 
Government in support of the plans.  

5.3 In December 2022, BV went into administration with only initial site preparation 
works undertaken at NEP3.  The conditions of the Option agreement were not met 
by BV. BV also left a legacy of a charge on the land following a £multi-million loan 
secured against it through Katch Investment Group.  Katch later appointed Begbies 
Traynor as Law of Property Act (LPA) Receivers and in January 2023, Ernst & 
Young Global were appointed as administrators to sell BV.   

5.4 Over the intervening period the Council has been engaged in discussions with the 
administrators and LPA receivers as the Option (the ‘buy-back’) ensures that NCC 

Page 2



 

 

- 3 - 

are a key controlling partner for any prospective developer or owner of NEP3, 
alongside our wider roles in promoting economic development and statutory roles as 
both planning and local highway authority.  

6. Proposal 

6.1 As part of the discussions on the future of the site, with both the LPA receivers and 
administrators, as well as Government, given the national importance of the site, 
significant interest began to emerge for the use NEP3 for datacentres and/or an 
artificial intelligence (AI) campus.  This was owing to the previous investments and 
activity led by Advance Northumberland to bring forward such an important and 
attractive site, the unique combination of site scale, clean electricity supply, and 
cooling water, alongside a growing demand in the data centre market.  

6.2 The UK is a globally important data centre market, home to the largest data centre 
market in Europe and the world’s second largest commercial cluster.  Each new 
data centre contributes £397m-£436m GVA (Gross Value Added) per year to the UK 
economy.  New technologies, increasingly utilised across sectors, are driving an 
increased demand for greater data centre capacity and the COVID-19 pandemic 
has accelerated some of the trends and factors driving growth in the sector. 

6.3 The UK is seen as a strong location for datacentres due to the experience and 
innovation in property and construction, the connectivity and optical fibre 
infrastructure, data security and privacy regulations, the welcoming investment 
environment, the cool and temperate climate and importantly the stable and 
affordable power supply. The strengths of the NEP3 site, particularly the scale of the 
site, it’s location, access to cooling water and strong renewable energy supply is 
critical to making NEP3 an attractive site for a large scale inward investment of this 
nature. The investment value of such operations is significant, with large 
construction programmes associated with their development, related infrastructure 
development and community benefit.     

6.4 Due to the strengths of the NEP3 site a number of parties began to approach NCC, 
including via the Administrators and LPA Receivers.  In January 2024, the Executive 
Director for Place & Regeneration confirmed with the LPA Receiver that Blackstone 
and QTS had reached a preliminary agreement on a lock-out position to complete 
on the exchanged position to secure the site. NCC has therefore progressed 
discussions with Blackstone and QTS, given this position.  NCC understands there 
is a condition on this exchange in favour of Blackstone and QTS, which requires a 
decision of NCC – through a cabinet resolution – to vary or remove the ‘buy-back’ 
Option on terms which are agreeable to it. 

6.5 The investment proposal that is being brought forward for NEP3 is the development 
of a major Hyperscale Cloud and/or AI Data Centre Campus, to be delivered by 
QTS, a leading global data centre owner, operator and developer, which is owned 
by funds advised by affiliates of Blackstone Inc., one of the largest asset 
management funds in the world. The project would represent a significant inward 
investment of up to £10billion, with the potential for a further £5-10billion from tenant 
investment; deliver over 1,600 direct jobs, including 1,200 long-term construction 
jobs, and over 2,700 indirect and induced jobs over the course of the development, 
and result in over £5bn of economic impact. 

6.6 The project represents not only a significant investment in the County but, given its 
scale adds to the digital infrastructure and resilience nationally at a time when the 

Page 3



 

 

- 4 - 

demand for the data driven machine learning and artificial intelligence is increasing, 
and as such has the support from Government and the Minister for Investment. 

6.7 The UK has already shown strengths in data driven growth and productivity in the 
financial sector and increasingly in the health sector, however there are significant 
opportunities for this to be extended to growth sectors in the County and north east, 
including clean energy and manufacturing.  With local and regional innovation and 
research assets and industrial clusters in these sectors, linked with the new and 
leading technologies delivered by the Hyperscale Data Centre Campus, there are 
exciting opportunities to develop cutting edge technology at the forefront of new 
industries. Linking these opportunities with skills and employment opportunities for 
local communities will be key to ensuring the investments benefit Northumberland 
residents.  

6.8 It is recognised that there were significant expectations on the site which have not in 
reality been borne out, however in recognition of the importance of NEP3 as a key 
strategic employment site NCC has sought to secure an ambitious commercial 
arrangement for the variation or removal of the ‘buy-back’ Option reflecting the land 
value of the intended development.   

6.9 For the past few months, NCC have been in active negotiation with Blackstone on 
what terms would be acceptable to support such a decision through NCC Cabinet, 
subject to Due Diligence. To support the negotiations and decision making, 
Cushman and Wakefield were commissioned to provide a Brokers Opinion of Value 
of the NEP3 site, based on development for datacentre use, which has allowed an 
assessment of best value (see Options section in Part 2 report). 

6.10 As a result a draft Heads of Terms will be considered by Cabinet in private session, 
due to the sensitivity of the commercial information contained within the document, 
and supporting documentation, which seeks to release the current NCC ‘buy-back’ 
option and enter into a new ‘buy-back’ agreement with Blackstone, subject to 
satisfactory Due Diligence.   

6.11 To support the consideration of the issues in this report NCC has commissioned 
Due Diligence on Blackstone, Inc., the Blackstone-managed funds looking to invest 
in the project and QTS and the proposals for the development of the site.  Although 
commercially confidential in nature the Due Diligence, carried out for NCC by Grant 
Thornton, it highlights: 

a) Financial strength of funds managed by Blackstone to deliver on the draft Heads 
of Term agreement and project proposals 

b) QTS track record of delivering data centres 

c) Risks associated with a currently unknown market presented by the demand for 
Cloud and AI 

6.12 To further support consideration of options, the Council’s advisors have obtained the 
opinion of leading Counsel in regard to this issue.   

6.13 In recognition of the potential value of a future agreement, the agreement will see a 
payment of up to £110m to NCC.  It is proposed this resource is used to establish 
the Growth and Investment Endowment Fund, a ring fenced fund, to maximise 
opportunities across the County to deliver further jobs growth and investment in 
support of the Council’s Economic Strategy.   

Page 4



 

 

- 5 - 

6.14 Funds will be due and payable in phases on a number of milestones being met, 
necessary for the development to succeed, including planning permissions, securing 
power, leasing and the successful development of the site. 

6.15 The primary purpose of the Growth and Investment Endowment Fund (GIEF) is to 
support economic growth and job creation and will be prioritised to bring forward 
projects for this purpose.  More detailed proposals will be brought forward for 
Cabinet consideration in due course and it is envisaged that funding will be ring-
fenced to deliver the following outcomes: 

a) Increased economic activity and improved productivity and wage levels 

b) Economic growth and more and better jobs 

c) Increase business competitiveness, sustainability and productivity 

d) Enhanced placemaking and connectivity 

e) Unlocking partnership collaboration between the private and public sector 

6.16 To support delivery of the above outcomes a Land Assembly Strategy will be 
developed with the aim of bringing forward sites in the County to deliver further jobs 
and growth, with a focus on industrial critical mass and proximity to existing 
business base and the economic growth corridor, created by the introduction of the 
Northumberland train line. These will be in locations well related and accessible to 
the Northumberland Line, and other existing strategic transport infrastructure, 
including the Port of Blyth. While some sites within this geography already benefit 
from being allocated for employment uses in the Adopted Northumberland Local 
Plan (2022), there are significant land holdings in the area which do not. The Local 
Plan does, however, include provisions to support, in appropriate circumstances, 
large-scale “windfall” employment development on unallocated land. It is proposed 
that in the short term, land will be brought forward using allocated sites or the 
windfall policy.  

6.17 Concurrently, there will be a strategic evaluation on whether enough employment 
land can be brought forward through this mechanism to meet growth aspirations. At 
the time of the development of the Local Plan, the delivery of the Northumberland 
Line was far from certain, and inward investment had not been secured on the NEP 
sites. Following this evaluation, if appropriate and necessary, consideration can be 
given to allocating additional key employment sites in a wider Northumberland Line 
growth corridor through a supplementary plan, or through an early review of the 
Local Plan, to ensure that a continuing supply and mix of employment sites remains. 
A routine review of the Local Plan is due by 2027 in accordance with national 
planning policy.      

6.18 Power – Access to power, including significant levels of renewable energy, is a key 
strength of the NEP3 site and will be critical for the delivery of the proposed 
development and securing end users.  The Hyperscale Data Centre Campus will be 
a heavy power user so the project is conditional on a power solution; as such 
constructive discussions have taken place between Blackstone, QTS, NCC, 
National Grid and power providers.  These discussions will inform the solution to the 
power requirements of Blackstone and QTS and in addition NCC has sought to 
ensure there is new energy infrastructure to bring forward wider development in the 
area.   

Page 5



 

 

- 6 - 

6.19 It is recognised nationally that the large levels of power demand that the project will 
require are understood to be helpful in mitigating wider power system issues 
otherwise created by large levels of power infeed being introduced to the electricity 
network in this area. This therefore assists in managing the flows across the 
transmission network and, although it is yet to be studied by the relevant Network 
Owners in detail, it could help in reducing the need for further network investment to 
export the power from the region.  

6.20 Investment Zone – the NEP3 site has been identified through the putative North 
East Combined Authority and Government as an ‘Investment Zone’ site. The 
Investment Zone status confers a number of tax incentives on the end users of the 
site, which will support Blackstone and QTS in securing end users for the 
Hyperscale Data Centre Campus, and increases the confidence in the growth of 
local Business Rate income and income to be retained in the region as a result of 
the Investment Zone policies. It also brings with it funding to support innovation and 
skills, which will be accessed, alongside wider support locally and regionally, to 
ensure local communities can benefit from these investments. 

7. Options open to the Council and reasons for the recommendations 

7.1 In making the decision to bring forward development of the NEP3 site the Council 
faces four choices: agree to remove the existing ‘buyback’ agreement and accept 
the commercial deal with Blackstone; step in and purchase the site; purchase 
through Advance Northumberland; or ‘do nothing’ and await the date at which the 
Council can exercise its ‘buy-back’ Option. 

7.2 The recommended position is to agree to remove the existing buyback agreement to 
secure a significant inward investment from Blackstone, securing wider investment 
into the County as a result of the agreement.  It should be noted this course of 
action carries the support of Government and the Minister for Investment. The 
detailed SWOT (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats) analysis of each 
option is set out in section 7 of the Part 2 report to inform Cabinet’s consideration of 
this matter.  

8. Implications 

Policy  None indentifed   

Finance and 
value for 
money 

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that 
“except with the consent of the Secretary of State, a council shall 
not dispose of land ... otherwise than by way of a short tenancy, 
for consideration less than the best that can be reasonably 
obtained”.  In this instance, the Council is not disposing of land, 
but instead receiving consideration for releasing the buy back 
option on the site and replacing it with a new buyback option that 
reflects the commercial development value of the land.   
 
Advice will be sought to determine if this contribution should be 
recognised by the Council as a Capital Receipt or Revenue 
Contribution. 

Page 6



 

 

- 7 - 

Legal  This is a matter for an Executive Decision. 
 
The following matters should be borne in mind when 
considering the offer.  This is not an exhaustive list and 
additional matters may also be considered: 
 
 a. The terms of any agreement; 
 b. The deliverability and credibility of Blackstone’s bid; 
 c. Blackstone’s financial position and ability to make the 
 contractual payments; 
 d. The realisim of Blackstone’s contingencies to meet 
the Heads of Terms commitments –  if no, what impact would 
deductions to the payments have on NCC; 
 e. The deliverability of NCC’s obligations under the 
 agreement: 
   i. The timeline for planning permission; 
   ii. The need to ensure that the agreement does 
   not fetter or seek to fetter NCC’s discretion in  
   respect of the planning process; 
 f. What further information might be needed on 
 Blackstone’s proposals – when an application would be 
 submitted, exactly what it would entail etc; 
 g. The deliverability of the Power supply requirement 
 under the agreement, and what would amount to 
 sufficient “comfort” for Blackstone in this respect; 
 h. The impact that failing to achieve each of the stages 
of  the agreement would have on the agreement, NCC, and 
 the site: 
 i. The benefits to NCC of accepting the offer – for 
 example financially, securing jobs for Northumberland, 
 ensuring use of the site etc; 
 j. The benefits to NCC of not accepting the offer- for 
 example preserving the ability of NCC to take control of 
 the site through buy-back; 
 
and 
 
 k. Whether accepting the offer would represent best 
 value for money 
   i. Its strategic fit and whether it meets  
    business needs; 
   ii. Its potential value for money; 
   iii. The capacity and capability of NCC and  
    Blackstone; 
   iv. The potential affordability; 
   v. The potential achievability; 
   vi. Other benefits which are not quantifiable 
    or monetizable – e.g. enabling progress  
    on the site for the benefit of   
    Northumberland; 
   vii. Other options (e.g do nothing, renegotiate, 

Page 7



 

 

- 8 - 

    rely on exercising the buyback themselves 
    in 2025) should be weighed against one  
    another to consider whether or not  
    accepting the offer would provide best  
    value for money. 
 
   

Procurement  None identifed  

Human 
resources  

None identified  

Property  Under the recommended option, the proposal would see 
significant private sector investment on a key site within the 
County.  In addition the Council would be securing additional 
investment which could be used to bring forward employment 
sites with a view to securing further jobs and investment.   

Equalities Act: 
is a full impact 
assessment 
required and 
attached? 

No - no equalities issues identified 

An equalities impact assessment has not been carried out. 
The investments described in this report will support economic 
growth and help to tackle inequality in the County and where 
necessary any projects or activites supported by the funding 
referred to in the report will make due consideration of the 
Council’s Pubic Sector Equality Duty.   

Risk 
assessment  

Risks have been considered of the recommended option (and 
all options) through the options appraisal in section 7 of the 
report.  Risk mitigation has been sought through external 
advice referred to in sections 6.10, 6.12 and 6.13 

Crime and 
disorder  

None identified  

Customer 
considerations  

None identified 

Carbon 
reduction  

None identified  

Health and 
wellbeing   

None identified  

Wards  Sleekburn  

9. Background papers 

 
 Northumberland Energy Park Phase 3, Cabinet 6 March 2021 

 
Northumberland Energy Park, Cabinet 9 November 2021 

 

Page 8



 

 

- 9 - 

North East Investment Zone, Cabinet 13 February 2024 
 

10. Links to other key reports already published 

As above  

11. Author and Contact Details  

Simon Neilson 
Executive Director for Place & Regeneration 
Simon.neilson@northumberland.gov.uk  
 

Page 9

mailto:Simon.neilson@northumberland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	3 REPORT OF THE LEADER
	6 REPORT OF THE LEADER

